
     

 

 
Notice of a public meeting of  

Decision Session - Economic Development and Community 
Engagement 

 
To: Councillor Aspden (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Tuesday, 3 July 2018 

 
Time: 2.00 pm 

 
Venue: The Auden Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G047) 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Notice to Members - Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by: 
 
4:00pm on Thursday 5 July 2018 if an item is called in after a 
decision has been taken. 
 
*With the exception of matters that have been subject of a previous 
call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not 
subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be 
considered by the Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Management Committee. 

 
Written representations in respect of item on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5:00pm on Friday 29 June 
2018. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, The Executive Member is asked to 

declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  
 any disclosable pecuniary interests 

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 



 

 
2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 2) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 

2018.  
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is 
5:00pm on Monday 2 July 2018.  Members of the public can 
speak on agenda items or matters within the Executive Member’s 
remit. 
 
To register to speak please contact Democratic Services on the 
details at the foot of the agenda. 
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will 
be filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered 
public speakers who have given their permission.  The broadcast 
can be viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if 
recorded, this will be uploaded onto the Council’s website 
following the meeting. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact Democratic Services (contact details are at the 
foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at  
 
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webc
asting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809  
 

4. Enhancing Economic Growth for Secondary 
Shopping areas   

(Pages 3 - 10) 

 This report asks the Executive Member to approve a proposed list 
of projects aimed at enhancing secondary shopping areas, and to 
agree funding for a study to guide future investment in these areas 
in order to enhance economic growth and strengthen the local retail 
environment. 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809


 

 
5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Contact details:   
Democratic Services  

 Telephone – (01904) 551088  

 E-mail – democratic.services@york.gov.uk  
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact 
Democratic Services, responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 

mailto:democratic.services@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Economic Development 
and Community Engagement 

Date 6 March 2018 

Present Councillor Orrell 

  

 

35. Declarations of Interest  
 

At this point in the meeting the Executive Member was asked to 
declare any personal or prejudicial interest that he might have in 
relation to the business on the agenda or any other general 
interests he might have within the remit of the Board. None 
were declared.  

 
36. Minutes  
 

Resolved: That the minutes of the last Decision Session held on 
9 November 2017 be approved as a correct record 
and then signed by the Executive Member. 

 
The Executive Member took this opportunity to confirm that 
since the Mansion House had reopened the visitor numbers had 
been better than expected.  

 
37. Public Participation  
 

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak 
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 

 
38. Service Level Agreements with York CVS and York City of 

Human Rights  
 

The Executive Member considered a report that sought his 
approval for a three year funding agreement to 31 March 2021 
with York CVS and a one year agreement to 31 March 2019 
with York City of Human Rights.  
 
The Assistant Director of Communities, Culture & Public Realm 
was in attendance to present the report.  He confirmed the 
funding proposed to York CVS was £48,000 over a three year 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



partnership agreement and would be used to develop strategic 
and operation collaborations across the city, to: 

 support the voluntary sector to survive and thrive;  

 represent  the sector and provide a voice;  

 work with the council to develop resilient communities. 
 
The Executive Member was informed that the service level 
agreement with York City of Human Rights would be 
administered by York CVS.  It was also noted that the proposed 
annual grant of £10,000 was to support Community Voices, to 
recognise that communities in York were changing and growing 
and to embrace this diversity to bring people together and 
create opportunities for them to be heard. 
 
The Executive Member welcomed the quarterly reviews and 
annual reports from York CVS and he thanked Cllr Keith 
Aspden for developing the York City of Human Rights initiative. 
 
Resolved:  That the funding set out in paragraph 4 of the report 

and the associated service level agreements set out 
in the annexes, be approved. 

 
Reason: To further the objective of ensuring that all York’s 

residents live and thrive in a city which allows them to 
contribute fully to their communities and 
neighbourhoods.  

 
 
 
 

 
Cllr K Orrell, Executive Member 
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.08 pm] 

Page 2



 

 

  
 

   

 
Executive Member Decision Session 
Economic Development and Community 
Engagement 
 
Report of the Director of Economy and Place 

3 July 2018 

 
 
Enhancing Economic Growth for Secondary Shopping Areas 

Summary 

1. The draft Local Plan for York defines two secondary shopping 
areas in York on Acomb Front Street and The Village, Haxby. A 
programme to enhance economic growth in these areas was 
agreed by Executive decision in 2017 and a capital budget of 
£100,000 was set aside for this purpose. 
 

2. Executive has agreed at its meeting of 21st June 2018 to translate 
this capital budget into a combined £75k revenue £25k capital 
budget, to better meet the objectives of the funding. 

 
3. This paper proposes that the £100k is divided equally between 

immediate measures to improve footfall and the street scene and 
a study to consider physical improvements to the public realm, 
designed to make a longer term impact. 

 
4. The allocation of £50,000 to be targeted at projects which promote 

footfall and improve the street scene in the two secondary 
shopping areas is matched to a programme of specific projects 
resulting from local consultation. 

 
5. A proposed brief for external consultants sets out the objectives to 

be achieved with the remaining budget. 
 
Recommendations 
6. That the proposed list of projects aimed at enhancing secondary 

shopping areas is agreed. 

Page 3 Agenda Item 4



 

7. That the remaining budget be used to fund a study which will 
guide future investment into our secondary shopping areas with 
the objectives of enhancing economic growth and strengthening 
the local retail environment.  

Reason: To deliver the Executive decision taken in May 2017 to 
enhance economic growth in secondary shopping areas. 

 

Background 

8. On the 18 May 2017the Executive agreed a Highways Funding 
Overview Report which included a proposed project ‘Enhancing 
Economic Growth for Secondary Shopping Areas’. The project 
was outlined as “A review of the layout of the Acomb and Haxby 
shopping areas and ways to achieve additional economic growth 
in these shopping areas will be undertaken and costed 
interventions proposed, following local consultation. A further 
report will be taken to the Deputy Leader (Executive Member for 
Economic Development) to consider proposed interventions.” The 
total budget was set at £100,000 of capital. 
 

9. Consultation with local residents in Acomb through the Westfield 
Ward Committee, local traders through the Acomb Alive group, 
Ward Councillors and the Executive Member has identified a list of 
potential projects in Acomb Front Street. 

 
10. In Haxby, the current lack of a traders group presents a challenge 

in how the Council can work with local businesses to improve the 
business environment.  It is proposed to allocate some of the 
funding to pay for community/place making consultants to work 
with traders and businesses in the village with the aim of 
establishing such a traders group. 

 
11. The original project outline – a review of the physical layout of 

both secondary shopping areas and the development of proposals 
to enhance growth – will be achieved using half of the original 
budget.  It is proposed that this work will be delivered by specialist 
consultants who will be procured through open competition. 

 
12. It is proposed that the remaining £50,000 be spent in both Haxby 

and Acomb on small-scale projects designed to have an 
immediate impact on these areas, trialling ideas or solutions which 

Page 4



 

might then form part of the longer-term work.  This £50,000 
comprises £25,000 of revenue and £25,000 of capital. These 
projects are set out below.  
 
Consultation 

13. A public consultation was carried out at the Westfield Ward 
committee held on the 17th July 2017. Acomb Alive and the Acomb 
and Westfield Neighbourhood Forum carried out public 
consultations seeking ideas for improving the secondary shopping 
areas and are committed to the further development of the project.  

 
Proposed projects – short term measures  

14. It is proposed that three strands of work are taken forward. 
 

i. A feasibility study for the creation of a local traders’ 
association in Haxby 

 
ii. Funding of projects to drive footfall to Acomb Front Street 

through targeted grants made to community organisations 
 
iii. Funding of projects to improve the streetscene in Acomb 

Front Street through targeted grants made to community 
organisations, with £23,000 capital as yet unallocated but 
open to both Acomb and Haxby traders’ groups within the 
current financial year 

 
15. The table below summarises each project, the organisation 

receiving a grant for delivery and the grant to be made for each 
project. 

 

Project Delivery 
organisation 

Amount 

Feasibility study on 
the creation of a 
trader association in 
Haxby 

Procurement process 
to be held to identify 
provider 

£5000 

Increasing footfall to 
Acomb Front Street 
at Christmas (2018) - 
lights 

Acomb Alive £7000 

Improving the 
streetscene on 

Acomb Alive £3000 

Page 5



 

Acomb Front Street - 
planters 

Improving the 
streetscene on 
Acomb Front Street – 
recycling area 
improvements 

Friends of Acomb 
Green 

£5000 

Increasing footfall to 
Acomb Front Street 
in the summer (2018 
and 2019)  

ADAM Festival £2500 for 2018 
£2500 for 2019, 
subject to successful 
delivery in 2018 

Improving wayfinding 
on Acomb Front 
Street 

Acomb Alive £2000 

Capital investment 
fund to support the 
objectives set out in 
this paper  

Open to traders 
groups in Acomb 
Front Street and 
Haxby village 

£23,000 (capital) 

Total   £50,000 

 
16. Consultation carried out with residents in areas served by the 

Acomb Front Street secondary shopping area identified that street 
scene improvements would lead to better shopping experience. 
Consultation also highlighted the need to bring shoppers in to the 
area to use the high street, rather than relying on local trade. 
 

17. Two measures are proposed which will seek to attract shoppers 
from outside the area to Acomb Front Street. The first is a grant 
made to Acomb Alive to attract Christmas shoppers to the area. 
The grant will be used to install Christmas lighting on Front Street 
and also lighting on Boroughbridge Road which will advertise 
Front Street to those entering the city on the A59.  

 
18. Additionally a grant of £2,500 is made to the Acomb Dance, Arts 

and Music (ADAM) Festival to support attracting visitors to the 
Acomb in 2018, with a further allocation available for 2019 subject 
to the successful delivery of work this year.  

 
19. Projects which improve the street scene include grants made to 

Acomb Alive to install a wayfinding board and a grant to improve 
the appearance of the street through the installation and 
maintenance of planters.  

Page 6



 

20. Additionally a grant will be made to the Friends of Acomb Green to 
improve the appearance of the recycling centre in Morrisons car 
park. This is the main car park used by visitors to the area and the 
recycling area was identified in consultation as giving a poor first 
impression to out of area shoppers.  
 

21. A further £23,000 of capital funding is available for projects which 
support the objectives of the scheme and are promoted by traders’ 
groups.  Allocations of this funding will be brought back to the 
Executive Member for Economic Development and Community 
Engagement for formal decisions later in the current financial year.  

 
22. Organisations will be required to fully deliver projects by August 

2019 and to report back by the 30th August 2019 on project 
delivery.  

 
Study to review the public realm in Haxby and Acomb secondary 
shopping areas  
23. In parallel with the measures outlined above, it is proposed that 

£50k be used to procure consultants to undertake a study 
exploring the long term trends in retail and how they might impact 
on growth in our secondary areas.  This study would look at both 
Acomb Front Street and Haxby and consider: 
a. Current understanding of the catchment area and the 

demography of shoppers 
b. The public realm and street layout, identifying scope for 

improvements with outline costings 
c. The retail/leisure/community use mix in each area with 

recommendations  
d. Transport links, car parking, and measures to sustain and 

build footfall 
e. Longer term trends in retailing and their likely impact on 

secondary shopping areas 
  
24. The study would be undertaken in the current financial year, with a 

report to be submitted before December 2018. 
 

25. This would then inform potential future investments in both 
secondary shopping areas. 

 
 
. 

Page 7



 

Council Plan  

26. Thriving secondary shopping areas are part of a prosperous city 
for all. Supporting secondary shopping areas allows local 
businesses to thrive and provides employment opportunities to 
local people.   

 
Implications 

27. Financial - there are no financial implications beyond the 
previously agreed budget. Grants are made to the organisations 
on the understanding that ongoing maintenance costs associated 
with the projects will be funded from alternative sources.  

 
28. Human Resources (HR) - There are no human resource 

implications 
 

29. Equalities – There are no equalities implications 
 
30. Legal - There are no legal implications 
 

31. Crime and Disorder - There are no crime and disorder 
implications 

 

32. Information Technology (IT) - There are no information 
technology implications 

 

33. Property  - There are no property implications 
 

34. Other -There are no other implications 
 
35. Risk Management 

 
In delivering projects through grants to community organisations, there 
is a risk that an organisation may not have the capacity to deliver. 
Organisations have submitted their constitutions and three months of 
bank statements to provide assurance of their capacity to deliver 
projects. Additionally all groups have previously delivered similar 
community projects.  
 

Page 8



 

     
Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 

Simon Brereton  
Head of Economic Growth   
Economic Growth Team  
01904 552814  
 

Neil Ferris  
Corporate Director of Economy and Place 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
Date 22 June 2018 

 
 

    
 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All √ 

 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Enhancing Economic Growth for Secondary Shopping areas

